
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, September 15, 2014 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 

CALL TO ORDER      7:00 PM      Mayor Vigil 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Donation to Park Fund from Car Show Committee by Russ Strohmeyer 
b. North Santiam School District Update by Andy Gardner 
c. 1st Annual Stayton/Sublimity BBQ Festival – August 1st to 2nd, 2015 by Dave Edwards 
 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. August 18, 2014 City Council Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting  location  is  accessible  to  persons with  disabilities.  A  request  for  an  interpreter  for  the  hearing 
impaired or other accommodations  for persons with disabilities should be made at  least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769‐3425. 
 
 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda    Page 1 of 4 
September 15, 2014 



  

PUBLIC HEARING 
Resolution No. 918, Adoption of a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2014‐2015 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
l. Council Decision on Resolution No. 918 
 
Ordinance No. 973, Proposed Amendments to SMC Title 17 Regarding the Setbacks for 
Accessory Structures on Corner Lots 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
c. Questions from Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from Public 
h. Questions from Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 
l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 973 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
Community Grant Applications                Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Stayton Community Emergency Response Team (CERT)        Informational 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
 
Library Board – Position Openings              Informational 
a.  Update from Library Director Katinka Bryk 
 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda    Page 2 of 4 
September 15, 2014 



  

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR                 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – October 6, 2014 
a. Council SDC Discussion 
b. Crime Ordinance 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda    Page 3 of 4 
September 15, 2014 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
SEPTEMBER 2014
Monday  September 15  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday  September 17  Library Board  6:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday  September 22  City Council Town Hall – 
System Development Charges 

6:30 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday  September 29  Planning Commission  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

OCTOBER 2014
Monday  October 6  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday  October 7  Parks & Recreation Board  7:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday  October 10  Community Leaders Meeting  7:30 a.m.  Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday  October 14  Commissioner’s Breakfast  7:30 a.m.  Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday  October 15  Library Board  6:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday  October 20  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Monday  October 27  Planning Commission  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

NOVEMBER 2014
Monday  November 3  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday  November 4  Parks & Recreation Board  7:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday  November 11  CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY 

Friday  November 14  Community Leaders Meeting  7:30 a.m.  Covered Bridge Café 

Monday  November 17  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday  November 19  Library Board  6:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Thursday  November 27 

Friday  November 28 
CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING 

Monday  November 24  Planning Commission  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

DECEMBER 2014
Monday  December 1  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday  December 2  Parks & Recreation Board  7:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday  December 9  Commissioner’s Breakfast  7:30 a.m.  Covered Bridge Café 

Friday  December 12  Community Leaders Meeting  7:30 a.m.  Covered Bridge Café 

Monday  December 15  City Council  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday  December 17  Library Board  6:00 p.m.  E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Thursday  December 25  CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS 

Monday  December 29  Planning Commission  7:00 p.m.  Community Center (north end) 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda    Page 4 of 4 
September 15, 2014 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 1 of 3 
August 18, 2014 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

August 18, 2014 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.         Time End:  7:55 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG

COUNCIL  STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Scott Vigil   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Emily Gooch  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Catherine Hemshorn  Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel  Katinka Bryk, Library Director 
Councilor Henry Porter  Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
  David Rhoten, City Attorney 

 
AGENDA  ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Jim Clark, 2530 E. Pine Street 
 
 
b. Marion County Extension and 4‐H Service District Presentation 

by Derek Godwin, Kara Fisher, and Linda Eubank 

 
Concern over lots near his property that are vacant 
and need mowed.  
 
Brief presentation about the proposed 4‐H Service 
District and the proposed Resolution No. 917.  

Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
 
 
 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
Council consideration of Resolution No. 917 under 
New Business. Also, Mr. Campbell noted there is 
an updated agenda which include the Temporary  
 
None 

Consent Agenda 
a. August 4, 2014 City Council Action Minutes 
b. August 11, 2014 City Council Special Session Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Hemshorn, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to approve the August 4, 2014 
City Council Action Minutes. Motion passed 5:0.  
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to approve the August 11, 2014 
City Council Session Minutes. Motion passed 4:0 
(Hemshorn abstained). 

Public Hearing  None 
Unfinished Business 
a. Adoption of Order of Denial for Appeal of Robert 

Riemenschneider 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to adopt the Order of Denial as 
drafted. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 2 of 3 
August 18, 2014 

New Business 
a. Resolution No. 917, a Resolution Approving Marion County 

Order to Initiate Formation of Marion county Extension and 4‐
H Service District 

 
b. Temporary Construction Easement with Linn County 

 
 

 
 

c. Storm Water System Development Charges 
 

 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Hemshorn, to adopt Resolution No. 917. 
Motion passed 5:0.  
 
Motion from Councilor Gooch, seconded by 
Councilor Hemshorn, to authorize the City 
Administrator to execute the easement. Motion 
passed 5:0. 
 
Mr. Fleishman gave a presentation on the new 
Storm Water SDC methodology and charges.  
 
A public hearing will be scheduled for the first 
Council meeting in December. A town hall in mid‐
September will be scheduled by staff and followed 
up with a work session in October.  

Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer 
a. July 2014 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens 
a. July 2014 Statistical Report 
b. National Night Out Recap  
 
 
Public Works Director’s Report 
a. July 2014 Operating Report 
 
 
 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. July 2014 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Katinka Bryk 
a. July 2014 Activities  

 
 
Brief review of Ms. Shaffer’s report. 
 
 
Chief Sebens reviewed his August Statistical report 
and gave a brief recap of this year’s National Night 
Out event.    
 
 
Mr. Campbell informed the Council beginning 
August 23rd, the Pool will be closed for the locker 
room remodel and other general yearly 
maintenance. 
 
 
No discussion.  
 
 
Ms. Bryk briefly updated the Council on the new 
self‐checkout stations at the Library. 

Presentations / Comments From the Public  None 
Business from the City Administrator 
a. Cancellation of the September 2, 2014 City Council Meeting 

 
No discussion.  

Business from the Mayor  None 
Business from the Council  Discussion of man seen carrying a sleeping bag 

into the Wilderness Park area, how does Police 
respond to this. Chief Sebens  
 
Councilor Quigley requested staff visit the 
property and see what can be done about this 
issue.   



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 3 of 3 
August 18, 2014 

Future Agenda Items – September 15, 2014 
a. Land Use Code 
b. Title 8 Changes 
c. NW Natural Gas Franchise 
d. Crime Ordinance 
e. Supplemental Budget – Pool  

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2014, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

 

Date:      By:     
    A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
 
Date:     Attest:     

  Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
             
Date:    Transcribed by:              
      Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 













 
 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

  TO:  Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 

  FROM:  Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

  DATE:  September 15, 2014 

  SUBJECT:  Public Hearing on Proposed Code Amendments regarding the 
Setbacks for Accessory Structures on Corner Lots 

   
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on proposed code amendments regarding 
the setbacks for accessory structures on corner lots. Following the public hearing, the City 
Council is requested to consider enactment of Ordinance 973. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Under SMC Section 17.04.100 a corner lot has two front lot lines.  Therefore, the front setback 
requirements apply from both streets.  SMC Section 17.20.040.3 requires an accessory building 
to meet the front setback requirements of the district in which it is located. 

SMC Section 17.20.050.1.a.3) allows a fence up to 6 feet in height to be along the front lot line 
without a driveway on a corner lot. 

The Planning Department was approached by a homeowner in the Phillips Estates subdivision 
who is planning on having a fenced‐in rear yard and who questioned the purpose of allowing a 
fence but not an accessory structure within the “front” setback area along the side of a corner 
lot.   

At the July Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the issue and 
decided to hold a public hearing on amendments that would allow an accessory structure up to 
five feet from the front line on a corner a lot under certain circumstances.  The Planning 
Commission held a public hearing at their August 25 meeting.  Following the public hearing, at 
which only one person offered testimony, the Planning Commission forwarded the 
amendments to the City Council with a recommendation for adoption. 

The proposed amendment would allow an accessory structure in the front setback area under 
the following circumstances: 

• The lot is a corner lot. 

• The rear lot line of the lot is also the rear line of the abutting lot.  

Public hearing staff report, Ord 973    Page 1 of 2  
September 15, 2014 



 

Public hearing staff report, Ord 973  Page 2 of 2  

September 15, 2014 

• The accessory structure is less than 200 square feet in floor area and less than 10 feet 

tall. 

• The accessory structure is located in the rear yard.  

• The accessory structure is located behind a site-obscuring fence no less than 6 feet in 

height.  

• There is not driveway on the lot front from which the setback is reduced.  

I will have illustrations at the hearing to make the issue more understandable. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council enact the amendments as 

presented.  Their Order is attached.  Staff recommends the City Council enact Ordinance 973 as 

presented. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 973 

Move to approve Ordinance No 973 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 

and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is 

unanimous, Ordinance No. 973 is enacted and will be presented to the 

Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 973 will be brought before the 

Council for a second consideration at the October 6, 2014 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 973 with the following changes … and direct staff to 

incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 

Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present 

and their vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first 

consideration is approved, Ordinance No. 973 will be brought before the 

Council for a second consideration at its October 6, 2014 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 

 







 

Ordinance No. 973 Amending Setback Requirements for Accessory Structures on Corner Lots Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 973 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE 

(SMC) TITLE 17, REGARDING THE SETBACKS FOR 

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON CORNER LOTS 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 
implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 
goals established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) as 
the Land Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 20, Section 17.20.040 contains standards applicable to 
accessory structures; 

WHEREAS, under the definitions in SMC Section 17.04.100 a corner lot has two front yards; 

WHEREAS, SMC Section 17.20.040.3 requires accessory structures on corner lots to meet the 
front setback requirements from both streets; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 
Use and Development Code in regards to the setback requirements for accessory structures on a 
corner lot, and following a public hearing, has recommended that the Stayton City Council enact 
the proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the 
amendments proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 20 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 
20, Section 17.20.040 is hereby amended as follows: 

Part 1: Amend Section 17.20.040.3. to allow small accessory structures to 

be located up to five feet of one front lot line. 

3. FRONT YARDS. Any accessory building shall meet the setback requirements of the 
district in which they are it is located except on a corner lot.  On a corner lot, an 
accessory structure shall meet the front setback requirement but an accessory 
structure of less than 200 square feet in floor area and less than 10 feet tall may be 
located no less than five feet from a front lot line provided the following requirements 
are met. 

a. The rear lot line of the lot is also the rear lot line of the abutting lot. 

b. The accessory structure is located in the rear yard. 

c. The accessory structure is located behind a site-obscuring fence no less than 6 feet 
in height. 

d. There is no driveway entering the street from the front lot line from which the 
accessory building is less than required front setback. 



 

Ordinance No. 973 Amending Setback Requirements for Accessory Structures on Corner Lots Page 2 of 2 

Part 2: Amend Section 17.20.040.4. to make the Code more concise. 

4. SIDE YARDS, INTERIOR. Accessory buildings not attached to the main building 
located in an interior side yard shall have a minimumbe setback of at least 5 feet from 
any a side lot line. 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 
Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 
Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 15th day of September, 2014.  

 CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2014 BY: _______________________________ 
 A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2014 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 











 
 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:      Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:    Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:     September 15, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:    Stayton CERT 
   
         
Community Emergency Response Team otherwise known as CERT is a national volunteer group 
that helps local emergency services respond to major emergency events in the community such 
as floods, earthquakes, fires, etc.  CERT volunteers are used to help notify citizens of issues, 
evacuations, and managing shelters, to name a few.  During non‐emergency times, the CERT 
volunteers are used to help out with community events. 
 
The Stayton Police Department has partnered with Calvary Lutheran Church who has graciously 
offered to take the lead on the Stayton CERT.  Marion County Emergency Management will be 
hosting training at the Calvary Lutheran Church.  The training will meet one night a week for six 
weeks starting October 13th. 

Stayton CERT    Page 1 of 1  
Septmeber 15, 2014 






